M. ANANDAM & CO.,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Balaji Speciality Chemicals Limited (formerly known as Balaji Speciality
Chemicals Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Balaji Speciality Chemicals Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements including material accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in india, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit (inciuding other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionai judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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S.No

Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Revenue Recognition

the sale of goods
(hereinafter referred to as “Revenue”) is
recognised when the Company performs
its obligation to its customers and the
amount of revenue can be measured
reliably  and the
consideration is probable. The timing of
such recognition is when the control

Revenue from

recovery  of

over goods is transferred to the
customers, which is mainly wupon
delivery.

The timing of revenue recognition is

relevant to the reported performance of |

the Company.
considers revenue as a key measure for

The management

evaluation of performance. There is a
risk of revenue being recorded before
the control over goods is transferred.

Refer Note 1C to the financial
statements - Material Accounting
Policies. '

Principal Audit Procedures

Our audit approach was a combination of tests

of internal controls and substantive procedures

including:

Assessing the appropriateness of Company’s
revenue recognition in line with Ind AS 115 -
Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
Evaluating the design and implementation of
Company’s controls in respect of revenue
recognition.

Testing the effectiveness of such controls
over revenue cut off at the year end.

Testing the supporting documentation for
sales transactions
closer to
subsequent to

recorded during the
the
the vyear-end,

period year-end and
including
examination of credit notes issued after the
year end to determine whether revenue was

recognised in the correct period.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. -
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to gzut eigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

d)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
there with are as stated in paragraph 1(b) above and paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provision of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements (Refer Note 35 of the financial statements);
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There are no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, (refer note no. 44 of the Financial Statements)
to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in
the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented that, (refer note no. 44 of the Financial Statements) to
the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in
the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has migrated to an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account having the feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility w.e.f 18™ April, 2023 and the same has operated throughout the
year since then for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with. However, the accounting software used by the Company has not been
enabled with the feature of audit trail log at the server or database to log direct file level
changes. Considering the limitation in the accounting software, we are unable to comment
on whether the audit trail has been tampered with or not as required by Rule 3(1) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. NS
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020, (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For M.Anandam & Co.,

Chartered accountants
(Firm Registration No.000125S) e

;\«-’\’I—

B.V.Suresh Kumar

Partner
Membership No.212187

UDIN: 24212187BKCIBH9785

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 4" May, 2024
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Balaji
Speciality Chemicals Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to”the
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl.and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the exte;ﬁ’apﬁhﬁa@lé to an audit of internal financial
/ )
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controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to the financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to the financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

For M.Anandam & Co.,
Chartered accountants
(Firm Registration No.000125S)

B.V.Suresh Kumar

Partner
Membership No.212187
UDIN: 24212187BKCIBH9785

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 4" May, 2024
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(v)

(vi)
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

With reference to Paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of the Company, we report that-

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

A.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company does not have intangible assets and hence reporting under the clause 3(i)(b) is
not applicable.

The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management in a
periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its business. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued any of its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both
during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the coverage, frequency and procedure of such verification is reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business. The
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were
not exceeding 10% in the aggregate for each class of inventory

The Company is sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 Crore during the year
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Further, the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement
with the books of account of the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made investments, not provided loans or advances in
the nature of loans or not stood guarantee or not provided security in/to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not granted loans, not made investments and not given guarantees or
securities and hence reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination,
the Company has not accepted deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the rules framed there under. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable. =
We have broadly reviewed the cost records m
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(vii)
(a)

(b)

(viii)
(ix)  (a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(x) (a)

M.Anandam & Co.,
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subsection (1) of section 148 of the Act, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not
made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax,
Customs duty, cess and any other statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate
authorities and there were no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at the last day of
the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records of the Company
examined by us, the particulars of Income tax as at March 31, 2024 which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute pending are as under:

Name of Nature Amount Amount Period Forum where
the of the (Rs.in paid to which | the dispute is
statute dues lakhs) under the pending
protest amount
(Rs. In relates
lakhs)
Income-tax | Income tax 35.05 7.01 AY 2019- | Commissioner  of
Act, 1961 20 Income tax
(Appeals)
Income-tax | Income tax 21.39 4.28 AY 2018- | Commissioner  of
Act, 1961 19 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income-tax | Income tax 64.03 Nil AY 2018- | Commissioner of
Act, 1961 19 Income Tax
(Appeals)

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by
us, we report that the Company has applied the term loans for the purpose for which the
loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used for long-term purposes by the Company.
The Company does not have any Subsidiaries, associates or Joint Ventures and hence,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Ordeﬁﬂ'qf}nt .applicable.

The Company has not raised monies by w/a{:ﬁ]%n"t?kgﬁb}lc offer or further public offer
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(xi)

(i)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3 (x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and hence reporting under clause
(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company is not engaged in any non-banking financial housing finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not a core investment company as defined in the Regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit

and in the immediately preceding financial year. ———-
&
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(xviii)
(xix)

(x)  (a)

(b)

For M.Ananda

M.Anandam & Co.,
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There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the
year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination,
there are no on-going projects and hence reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) is not applicable.

m & Co.,

Chartered accountants

(Firm Registration No.000125S) _—

[

B.V.Suresh Kumar

Partner

Membership No.212187 -'

UDIN: 24212187BKCIBH9785

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 4" May,

2024
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BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS LIMITED (Formerly known as BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in rupees in lakhs, except share data or otherivise stated)

As at As at
Particulars Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I. ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 21 17,402.56 17.780.32
(b) Capital work-in-progress 2.2 6,117.52 3,948.95
(¢) Right-of-use assets 24 7.36 1413
(d) Financial assets
Other financial assets 3 127.02 170.95
(€) Other non-current assets 4 829.19 143.77
24,483.65 22,058.12
Current assets
{a) Inventories 5 242588 3,557.95
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 - 1,033.65
(11) Trade receivables 7 5,818.52 11,759.43
(iif) Cash and cash equivalents 8 5,030.03 3,709.43
{iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 9 B8.376.73 1.811.70
(v) Other financial assets 10 6.67 4.29
(c) Other current assets 11 1,758.02 2,163.40
23,415.85 26,039.85
TOTAL ASSETS 47,899.50 48,097.97
I1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 4,000.00 4,000.00
(b) Other equity 13 38,656.89 32,555.01
42,656.89 36,555.01
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 1,060.61 3,030.25
(ii) Lease liabilities 25 0.65 789
(b} Provisions 13 17.89 1.69
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 2,030.10 2,230.53
3,109.25 5,270.36
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 909,09 2,727.18
(ii) Lease liabilities 25 7.24 6.76
(i1i) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 225.88 450.65
b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 355.24 2,179.06
small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 19 530.58 171.55
(b) Other current liabilities 20 12.24 11.13
(c) Provisions 21 4.12 6.83
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 22 88.97 719.44
2,133.36 6,272.60
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 47,899.50 48,097.97
Material accounting policies 1{C)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For M.Anandam & Co.,
Chartered Accountan
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Managing Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS LIMITED (Formerly known as BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
(All amounts ave in rupees in laklis, except share data or othervise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I. Income
Revenue from operations 23 31,6603.86 7912276
Other income 24 882.52 750.69
Total income 32,546.38 79,873.45
IL. Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25 16,075.70 10,807.14
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods 26 (11.27) (528.84)
Employee benefits expense 27 991.61 49553
Finance costs 28 427.37 1,019.12
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 29 1,179.51 1,436.85
Other expenses 30 6,889.86 10,499.96
Total expenses 25,552.78 53,729.76
I11. Profit before tax (I-11) 6,993.60 26,143.69
IV. Tax expense:
(1) Current tax 1,740.24 749317
(2) Earlier year tax (643.43) 95.68
(3) Deferred tax (203.09) 741.27
Total tax expense 893.70 8,330.12
V. Profit for the year (I11- IV) 6,099.90 17,813.57
VI. Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
a) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 4164 (9.12)
b) Income tax relating to item (a) above (2.66) 2.66
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 1.98 (6.46)
VII. Total comprehensive income for the year 6,101.88 17,807.11
VIIL Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 2 each)
(1) Basic (in Rs.) 33 3.05 8.91
(2) Diluted (in Rs.) 3.05 8.91
Material accounting policies 1(C)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date On behalf of Board of Directors
For M.Anandam & Co.,
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BALAJISPECIALITY CHEMICALS LIMITED (Formerly known as BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

CAIL anigunts are in rigwes i lokls, exeopt share dala or otherivisy stated)
i Year ended Year ended
Faticyhus March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 6,993 60 26, 143.09
Adjustments for: - -
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 1,179.51 1.430.85
Liablities no longer required written back - 4313
Interest on horrowings M5 20 807 33
Interest on lease labilities 104 1 83
IPO expenses written off (Refer Note 43) 480,94 -
Bad debts written off So.07 -
Fair value gain onanvestments designated at FVTPL (Net) = (20.86)
Profiton redemption of investments designated at FVTPL (226
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (0.87) -
Interest income (739.80) (T3.88)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 8.354.09 28,312.03
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) / decrease in Inventories 1,132.07 (1.858.50)
tIncreasel/ decrease in Trade receivables 3.844,23 442570
(Increase) / decrease in Financial assets other than trade receivables A0 (1.790.13)
(Increase) [/ decrease in Other non-financial assets (258 .85) L7 14
Increase/ (decrease) in Trade pavables (2,048.58) 28507
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities LRE R 2849
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 1813 119.3%)
Increase / (decrease) in other non-finanaial habilites (96, 48) (34584
Cash generated from operations 6,796.75 30,214.93
Income taxes paid {1,629.68) (7.270.00)
Nelt cash flow fromy(used in) operaling activities 5,167.07 22,544.93
Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in Property, plant and equipment (B09.12) (425.31)
(Increase) [ decrease in Capital work-in-progress (2,168.50) (3.948.95)
Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 13.00 -
({Increase)/ decrease in Capital advances (083.41) 13249
Increase/ (decrease) i Capital creditors (7.32) 1749
Purchase of mvestments designated at FVTPL - (1.n2.79)
Procesds from redemption of investments designated at FVTPL 1,035.9 -
Interest income on deposits and others 737.42 117.01
Net cash flow fromy (used in) investing activities (1,382.08) (5,120.06)

Cash flow from financing activities
Repavment of non-current borrowings
Proceeds/ (repavment} from current borrowings (net)

{3,787.73)

(9,327.18)
(1,579.12)

Interest paid (332.13) (879.03)
Payment for [nterest on lease liabilities * (1,04} {1.83)
Amount recerved from the selling shareholders m relation to IPO withdrawn (Refer Note 43) 35408 -
Expenses i relation to IPO withdrawn (Refer Note 43) (171.39) (66d.23)
Pavment for Principal Compaonent of Lease abilities (6.76) {5.27)
Net cash flow fromy (used in) financing activities (3,964.39) (12,456.66)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (679.40) 5,368.21
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginnitg of the year 5,709.43 341.22
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 8) 5,030.03 5,709.43
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet
Cash and Cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet
Balance with banks
- i current accounts - 91885
- Detut balance in cash credit accounts 491 40 LRS-y
Term Deposits less than three months 453853 4,12570
Cash on hand 0.04 001
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5,030.03 5,709.43
Note:
Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS - 7 specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013
Net debt reconciliation
. As at As al
Pacticidars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance of borrowings 3.73743 16,063.73
Proceeds from non-current borrowings = =
Repavment of non-current borrowings (3,787.73) (9.327.18)
Proveeds from / (repavment of) current borrowings - (1,579.12)
Closing balance of borrowings 1,969.70 5,757.43

Material accounting policies-1(C)
The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS LIMITED (Formerly known as BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED)
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(Al amounts are in rupees in lakhs, except share data or otherwise stated)
a. Equity share capital

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Number of Shares Amount | Number of Shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the reporting year 20,00,00,000 4,000.00 20,00,00,000 4,000.00
Add: Changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors - - - -
Add: Changes in equity share capital during the year - . -
Balance outstanding at the end of the year 20,00,00,000 4,000.00 20,00,00,000 4,000.00
b. Other equity
; Reserves and surplus
Particulars = = ¢ .
Securities premium Retained earnings Total
Balance as at April 1, 2022 4,400.00 10,619.52 15,019.52
Changes in retained earnings due to Prior period errors - (271.62) (271.61)
Deferred tax impact on the above - 20.50 20.50
Restated balance as at April 1, 2022 - 10,347.90 14,747.91
Irofit for the year = 17,813.57 17,813.57
Other comprehensive income on remeasurement of em ployee defined - (6.47) (6.47)
benefit obligation (net of tax)
Balance as at April 1, 2023 4,400.00 28,155.01 32,555.01
Restated balance as at April 1, 2023 - 28,155.01 32,555.01
Profit for the year - 6,089.90 6,099.90
Other comprehensive income on remeasurement of em ployee defined - 1.98 1.98
benefit obligation (net of tax)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 4,400.00 34,256.89 38,656.89

Material accounting policies - 1(C)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For M.Anandam & Co,,
Chartered Au:uuntant-.'///,
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N.Rajeshwar Reddy
Managing Director
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BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS LIMITED (Formerly known as BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED)
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

1(A) Corporate information

1(B)
(i)

(iv)

Balaji Speciality Chemicals Limited. (BSCL) (Formerly known as Balaji Speciality Chemicals Private Limited), is a Public Limited company incorporated
in India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company's registered office is located at 2nd Floor, Balaji Towers, No.9/1A/1, Hotgi
Road, Aasara Chowk, Solapur, Maharastra - 413224, The Company is a subsidiary of Balaji Amines Limited.

Basis of preparation and measurement

Statement of compliance & Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, ("Act") and other relevant provisions of the
Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The acocunting plolicies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in
the financial statements except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires
change in accounting policy hitherto in use.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in
Indian Rupees have been rounded-off to nearest lakh with two decimals except share data or as otherwise stated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:
- Certain financial assets and liabilities : Measured at fair value
- Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability :  Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit obligations
- Borrowings : Amortised cost using effective interest rate method

Use of estimates and judgements

In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

Significant judgements and estimates relating to the carrying values of assets and liabilities include useful lives of property, plant and equipment,
impairment of property, plant and equipment, provision for employee benefits and other provisions, recoverability of deferred tax assets, commitments
and contingencies. ;
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next
financial year are included in the following notes:

- Determining an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life;

- Impairment of financial assets;

- Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

- Recognition of tax expense including deferred tax

Measurement of fair values

Company accounting polices and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial and non-financial assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

I'he principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

I'he Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).




BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS LIMITED (Formerly known as BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED)
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

1(0)
(vi)

(vii)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the
fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

I'he Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.
Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the Note 39 - Financial instruments.

Current and non-current classification:
Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the company has
ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet.

'
Material accounting policies
Revenue recognition
(i) Revenue from contract with customers
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the company performs its obligations to its customers and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably and recovery of the consideration is probable. The timing of such recognition is when the control of goods is transferred to the customer, which
is mainly upon delivery.
Revenue is measured at transaction price that the company receives or expects to receive as consideration for goods supplied, net of returns, allowances,
trade discounts and volume rebates as part of the contract and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

(ii) Recognition of interest income
Interest income is recognized on accrual basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable.

* Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, plant and equipment acquired by the company are carried at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The acquisition cost for this purpose includes the purchase price (net of duties and taxes which are recoverable in future) and expenses
directly attributable to the asset to bring it to the site and in the working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. An item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use. Difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The catalyst is an asset that facilitates the process that increases the future economic benefits and output efficiency expected from the plant.

Land allotted by MIDC on long lease basis is treated as "Leasehold land" on the basis of possession from MIDC ("the Lessor"). The one-time lump sum
premium paid at the time of allotment is amortized over the period of the 88 year lease.

(viii) Capital work-in-progress

(ix)

(x)

Capital work-in-progress is carried at cost less impairment loss, if any. [t comprises of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their
intended use at the reporting date.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of PPE over its useful life and is provided on the straight line method over the useful
lives as prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Act. ’
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognised so
as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using
straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Compani_us Act, 2013.

I'he Company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change
is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis. An asset's carrying amount written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation on Leasehold improvements is provided over the life estimated by the management. Catalyst is depreciated over the useful life estimated
by the management.

Government grants and subsidies
Grants from the government are recognised when there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all
attached conditions.




BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS LIMITED (Formerly known as BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED)
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(xi)

(xii)

Leases

As a Lessee:

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset, the company assesses whether:

(1) The Contract involves the use of an identitied asset;

(2) The Company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

(3) The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for
leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend
or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will
be exercised. :
The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.

They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the balance lease term of the underlying asset. Right of use
assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable,

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. Lease
liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset shall be separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments shall be classified as financing cash flows.
The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under Ind AS 17.

Operating lease - Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are utilised.

Employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits

Wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Long-term employee benefits

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity obligation

The liability or assets recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuary using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they
occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or
loss. The gratuity liability is covered through a recognized Gratuity Fund managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Defined benefit plan - Leave encashment

The liabilities for earned leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months atter the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service. They are therefore measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the
end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations. Remeasurements as a result of the experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least
twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Defind contribution plans
Contributions to post employment benefit plans in the form of provident fund as per regulations are charged as an expense on an accrual basis when
employees have rendered the service. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.




BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS LIMITED (Formerly known as BALAJI SPECIALITY CHEMICALS PRIVATE LIMITED)
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(xiii) Tax expenses
Accounting treatment in respect of deferred tax and current tax is in accordance with Ind AS 12 - "Income Taxes”
Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and other applicable tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
differences arise from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Tax relating to items recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income is recognised in equity or other comprehensive income and not in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they are related to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realized simultaneously.

(xiv) Inventories
Raw materials, packing materials, stores and spares, and other consumables are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost
comprises of basic cost (net of GST, if any) and other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost is
determined on a First-in-First Out basis.
Work-in-Progress and finished goods are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Cost includes all direct costs and a proportion of
other fixed manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.

(xv) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of not more than
three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

(xvi) Foreign Currency Transactions
[ransactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities such as cash, receivables, payables, etc., are translated at year end exchange rates. Exchange differences arising on settlement of transactions
and translation of monetary items are recognised as income or expense in the year in which they arise.

(xvii) Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share ('EPS) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of
all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. In
computing diluted earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share
are included.

(xviii) Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a Financial Asset of one entity and Financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
(i) Initial measurement and recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A
financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (FVIPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.
(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are categorised as under:
- amortised cost;
- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or
- Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVIPL)
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for
managing financial assets.
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and i
amount outstanding.
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On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVIPL. This includes all derivative
financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVIPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost : These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in Statement of profit and loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not
reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVIPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVIPL if it is classified as
held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition - Financial assets

A Financial asset is primarily derecognised when the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks
and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Derecognition - Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantially different.
In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial Instruments Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently and legally enforceable right to
set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

The Company recognises provisions when there is present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources
and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to the reflect the current best estimate.

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent Liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent assets are not recognized in financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised.

Standards issued but not yet effective
T'here is no such notification applicable from April 1, 2024,
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2.1(a). Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation Netcanying
amount

Particulars As at As at
Apr;?i,a;UZS Additions Deletions | March 31, April 1, For the year | On disposals Marc:Z:,tZOZfi Marc:i;‘lﬂ,tzozll

2024 2023
Freehold land 411.95 - - 411.95 - - - - 411.95
Leasehold land 93.00 - - 93.00 3.93 1.07 - 5.00 88.00
Leasehold land improvements 56.09 - - 56.09 13.21 3.55 - 16.76 39.33
Buildings 2,878.50 2.07 - 2,880.57 345.85 91.20 - 437.05 2,443 .52
Plant and equipment 18,883.90 807.04 17.00 19,673.94 4,191.14 1,074.21 2.87 5,262.48 1441146
Furniture and fixtures 9.02 - - 9.02 3.38 0.73 - 4.11 491
Office equipment 5.37 - - 5.37 210 1.15 - 3.25 212
Computers 6.56 - - 6.56 4.46 0.83 - 5.29 .27
TOTAL 22,344.39 809.11 17.00 23,136.50 4,564.07 1,172.74 2.87 5,733.94 17,402.56
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2.1 (b) Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation Neteartying
amount

= As at As at
Apr:I\F‘iI,a:tZ(]ZZ Additions Deletions | March 31, April 1, For the year | On disposals Marc:!;;,tz(ln Marc:Z:,l2023

2023 2022
Freehold land - 411.95 E 411.95 - - - - 411.95
Leasehold land 84.34 8.66 - 93.00 2.9 1.02 - 3.93 89.07
Leasehold land improvements 56.09 - - 36.09 9.65 3.56 - 13.21 42.88
Buildings 2,878.50 - = 2,878.50 254.70 91.15 = 345.85 2,532.65
Plant and equipment 18,883.90 2 - 18,883.90 2,858.36 1,332.78 - 4,191.14 14,692.76
Furniture and fixtures 9.02 - - ) 9.02 252 0.86 - 3.38 5.64
Office equipment 2,59 2.78 - 5.37 1.25 0.85 = 210 3.27
Computers 4.64 1.92 - 6.56 3.58 0.88 = 446 2.10
TOTAL 21,919.08 425.31 - 22,344.39 3,132.97 1,431.10 - 4,564.07 17,780.32

Note: For assets secured against long term borrowings refer note-14 of the financial statements.

2.2. Capital work-in-progress ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars 5 M g
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Maze than. Total Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years oxeflin 3 Total
years Year years
Projects in progress 2,588.91 3,528.61 - - 6,117.52 3,048.95 - - - 3,948 .95
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2.3. Expenditure during construction period (included in Capital work-in-progress):

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024| Year ended March 31, 2023
Balance brought forward (A) - -
Expenditure incurred during the year

Rates and Taxes 8.00 -
Printing and Stationery 0.05 -
Professional, Consultancy and Legal expenses 5.85 -
Travelling and Conveyance 0.05 -
Gardening & Pollution Control Expenses 3.74 -
TDS Expenses 0.01 -
Total expenditure duirng construction period (B) 17.71 . -
Less: Turnover (C) = =
Less: Stocks of finished goods out of trail run production - -
Total (A+B-C-D) 17.71 =
Allocated to Plant and Machinery - -
Balance carried forward 17.71 -

2.4 Right-of-use assets (ROU)
The Company has entered into lease contracts for its registered office building at Solapur and office space at Hyderabad used for its operations.
Movement in Right of use assets is given below:

As at As at

March 31, March 31,

Particulars 2024 2023
Opening balance 14.13 1.12
Add: Additions during the year - 18.76
Less: Deletions during the year = -
Less: Amortisation during the year 6.77 5.75
Closing balance 7.36 14.13

The aggregate amortisation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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2.5 Lease liabilities
The following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,

2024 2023
Current lease liabilities 7.24 6.76
Non-current lease liabilities 0.65 7.89
Total 7.89 14.65
Movement in Lease liabilities is given below:

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,

2024 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 14.65 1.16
Additions during the year - 18.76
Finance costs accrued during the year 1.04 1.83
Deletions - -
Payment of lease liabilities 7.80 7.10
Balance at the end of the year 7.89 14.65
(iii) Contractual maturities of lease liabilities on undiscounted basis

As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 31,

2024 2023
Less than one year 7.80 7.80
One to three years 0.70 8.50
Total 8.50 16.30

(iv) The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when
they fall due.

(v) The incremental borrowing rate used for the measurement of lease liability is 7.10% per annum which is the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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3. Other financial assets (non-current)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Earmarked balances with banks
Margin money deposits 6.13 3452
Others
Security deposits 120.89 11643
Total 127.02 170.95
4. Other non-current assets
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Unsecured, considered good

Taxes paid under protest 11.29 11.29
Capital advances 817.90 132.48

Total §29.19 143.77
5. Inventories (Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Raw materials (includes materials in transit of £s.95.31 Lakh; P.Y.2022-23 - Rs. 73.64 Lakh) 270.68 1,420.51
Work-in-progress 231.30 231.57
Finished goods (includes goods-in-transit - Nil; P.Y.2022-23 - Rs. 316.42 Lakh) 1,556.39 1,544.85
Stores and spares 289.02 249.20
Packing materials 3245 64.78
Consumables 46.04 47.04
Total 242588 3,557.95
5.1 For inventories secured against borrowings, refer note no.17 to the financial statements.
6. Investments

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Investments in Mutual Funds - Unquoted i
Designated at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)
Investments - SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth - 1,033.65
(29337.395 Units at NAV of Rs. 3,523.30 per unit; P.Y. NIL)
Total - 1,033.65
Aggregate amount of quoted investments - -
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments - 1,033.65
Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments - -
7. Trade receivables

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good 5,818.52 11,759.43
Total 5818.52 11,759.43

* Includes amount receivable from related parties (refer note 37).

7.1 For Trade receivables secured against borrowings, refer note no. 17 to the financial statements.
7.2 For Company's exposure to the market risk and credit risk, refer note no. 38 to the financial statements.

7.3 Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on a credit term of 7 to 120 days.
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Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
months

6 months - 1
year

1-2years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade
considered good

receivables -

(if) Undisputed Trade receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk

(iii) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit
impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables- considered
good

(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit
impaired

(vii) Expected credit loss rate

(viil) Expected credit loss

Total

4.782.41

4,782.41

1.033.95

1,033.95

[
-

212

0.04

0.04

5,818.52

5,818.52

# The Company has not accounted for expected losses as it has no defaults in payments from the customers in the earlier years.

Trade Receivables ageing schedule
As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
months

6 months -1
year

1-2vyears

2-3years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -

considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk

{ili) Undisputed Trade receivables - credit
impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables- considered
good

(v) Disputed Trade receivables - which
have significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade receivables - credit
impaired

(vii) Expected credit loss rate

(viii) Expected credit loss

Total

9,511.86

9,511.86

2,247.57

2,247.57

11,759.43

11,759.43

# The Company has not accounted for expected losses as it has no defaults in payments from the customers in the earlier years.

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

a) Balances with banks
- Current accounts
- Debit balance in cash credit accounts
- Term deposits with banks

b) Cash on hand

491.46
4,338.33
0.04

918.85
664 87
4,125.70
0.01

Total

5,030.03

5,709.43

9. Other bank balances

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Balances with banks

lerm deposits with original maturity between three to twelve months (includes interest accrued)

Earmarked balances with banks
Margin money deposits

8,138.95

237.78

1,809.42

2.28

Total

8,376.73

1,811.70
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10. Other financial assets (current)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Interest accrued on other deposits with government authorities 6.67 4.29
Total 6.67 4.29
11. Other current assets
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Prepaid expenses 34.94 344.27
Advances to suppliers 177.39 113.58
GST incentive 1.488.96 327.99
GST input tax credit and refunds 56.73 711.33
Others (Refer Note 45) - 664,23
Total 1,758.02 2,163.40
12. Equity share capital
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
AUTHORIZED
22,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs, 2 each 4,500.00 4,500.00
(P.Y - 22,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each)
Total 4,500.00 4,500.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP CAPITAL
20,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each, paidup 4,000.00 4,000.00
(P.Y - 20,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 2 each, fully paid-up)
Total 4,000.00 4,000.00
(A) Mov t in equity share capital:
Particulars Aher W Amount|
shares
Balance as at March 31, 2022 20,00,00,000 4,000.00
Movement during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 20,00,00,000 4,000.00
Movement during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 20,00,00,000 4,000.00
(B) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Name of the shareholder
No. of Shares % holding No. of Shares " holding
Balaji Amines Limited 11,00,00,000 53.00% 11,00,00,000 55.00%
Ande Srinivas Reddy 1,78,11,700 8.91% 1,73,48,200 8.67%
Ande Prathap Reddy 1,31,29,000 6.56% 1,25,75,500 6.29%

(C) Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 2 each (P.Y Rs. 2 each). Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. [n the event of liquidation of the company, the equity shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of

all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(D) Shares held by Holding company

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Equity Shares:

Balaji Amines Limited 11,00,00,000 11,00,00,000
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(E) (i) Shareholding of promoters:
As at March 31, 2024

Name of the promoter

No. of shares

% of total shares

s of change
during the year

Balaji Amines Limited - Holding company 11,00,00,000 35.00% '
A Srinivas Reddy 1.78,11,700 B8.91% 267%
N Rajeshwar Reddy 57,553,400 2.88% 0.00%
[ Ram Reddy 62,69,300 3.13% 7.91%
Ande Prathap Reddv 1,31,29,000 6.56% 4.40%
G Hemanth Reddy 44,52,095 223% 5.64%
Total 15,74,17 495 78.71%
(ii) As at March 31, 2023

"y of change

Name of the promoter

No. of shares

% of total shares

during the year

Balaji Amines Limited - Holding company 11,00,00,000 55.00% =
A Srinivas Reddy 1,73,48,200 8.67% (3.62%)
N Rajeshwar Reddy 57,55,400 2.88% (9.79%)
D Ram Reddy 58,09,500 2.90% (9.65%)
Ande Prathap Reddy 1,25,75,500 6.29% (6.85%)
G Hemanth Reddy 42,14,495 211% (8.38%)
Total 15,57,03,095 77.85"%
13. Other equity
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium 4,400.00 4,400.00
Retained earnings 34,256.89 28,153.01
Total 38,656.89 32,555.01
Securities premium
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Opening balance 4,400.00 4,400.00
Add: Movement during the year - -
Closing balance 4,400.00 4,400.00
Retained earnings
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening balance 28,155.01 10,619.52
Add/(Less): Changes in retained earnings due to Prior period errors* - (271.62)
Add: Profit for the year 6,099.90 17,813.57
Add: Other comprehensive income - Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) 1.98 (6.46)
Closing balance 34,256.89 28,155.01

* During the last year, the Company has made certain Ind AS adjustments to rectify the prior period errors related to Ind AS 115 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The effect of these adjustments is given to the opening retained earnings since the amount

involved is not material as per Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Frrors.

Nature and purpose of other reserves
(i) Securities premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013.
(ii) Retained earnings

Retained earnings represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obligations. This reserve can be
utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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14. Borrowings

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Non- current

a) Secured loans
Term loans from banks 1,060.61 3,030.25

Total 1,060.61 3,030.25

i)Term loans from banks:

The company has availed term loans from HDFC Bank Limited. The loan from from HDFC Bank Limited is repayable in 66 equal monthly installments
starting from Dec, 2020.

ii) Security:

T'he term loans from HDFC Bank Ltd secured by first charge on factory land and building located at E-8/1, MIDC, Chincholi, Solapur, Maharashtra.
Second pari passu charge on entire current assets of the company present and future.

iii) Repayment schedule:

Financial Year HDFC Bank Ltd
ROI 8.31% p.a.

2024-2025 909.09
2025-2026 909.09
2026-2027 151,32
Total 1,969.70

iv) For the Company's exposure to the interest rate risk and liquidity risk, refer note no.38 to the financial statements.

15. Provisions (non-current)

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Leave encashment 17.89 1.69
Total 17.89 1.69

16. Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023

(i) Deferred tax liabilities on timing, difference due to:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2,019.52 2,236.35
(ii) Deferred tax assets on account of:

Expenses allowable on pavment basis 10.58 (5.82)
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 2,030.10 2,230.53

Movement in deferred tax liabilities (net)

Expenses

Particulars WDV of assets allov’::ble on U::::g:ax Total

payment basis
As at April 1, 2022 2,164.12 (6.34) (643.37) 1.512.41
Recognition of MAT shown under deferred tax -
Deferred tax impact on restatement adjustments (20.49) (20.49)
(Charged )/Credited
to Statement of profit and loss 72.23 3.18 663.86 741
to Other comprehensive income = (2.66) - (2.66)
As at March 31, 2023 2,236.35 (5.82) - 2,230.53
As at April 1, 2023 2,236.35 (5.82) - 2,230.53
(Charged )/Credited
to Statement of profit and loss (216.83) 13.74 - (203.09)
to Other comprehensive income - 2.66 - 2.66
As at March 31, 2024 2,019.52 10.58 - 2,030.10
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17. Borrowings

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured

Repayable on demand

Working capital loans from banks - -

Current maturities of long-term borrowings

From banks 909.09 2,727.18
Total 909.09 2,727.18

lhe cash credit facilities/ working capital loans which are obtained from HDFC Bank Ltd and SBI, are secured by hypothecation of stocks of raw
materials, stock in process, finished goods , spares and book debts and second charge on property,plant and equipment . The above loans carry interest

rate ranging from 9.20%p.a to 9.45%p.a.

For the Company's exposure to the interest rate risk and liquidity risk, refer note no.38 to the financial statements.

18. Trade payables

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024] March 31, 2023
Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note below) 22588 450.65
Dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises* 355.24 2,179.06
Total 581.12 2,629.71
*Includes amounts payable to Holding company (refer note 37),
Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each supplier at the end of accounting vear
Principal amount 22588 450.63

Interest due
ii) Amount of interest paid by the Company under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the pavment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during the accounting year

iii} Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

iv) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the.end of accounting year

v) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of MSMED Act, 2006,

Note: Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

collected by the management.

Trade payables aging schedule as at March 31, 2024

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
et Thie Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mone hand Wiihllad ol
years
(i) MSME* 240.43 - - - - 240.43
(ii) Others 156.35 105.89 0.55 - 26.48 51.42 340.69
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME = < : - . = &
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - - - -
Total 396.78 105.89 0.55 - 26.48 51.42 581.12
*includes dues to medium enterprises.
Trade payables aging schedule as at March 31, 2023
Particulars Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Whooe i Unbilled Total
years
(1) MSML 450.65 - - - o 450.65
(ii) Others 1,625.49 365.95 - - 26.41 161.21 2,179.06
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - = - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - = - - -
Total 2,076.14 365.95 - - 26.41 161.21 2,629.71
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19. Other financial liabilities (current)

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024) March 31, 2023
Interest accrued but not due 14.42 21.31
Employee benefits payable 417.78 44.95
Other recoveries pavable 241 200
Security deposits 0.15 113
Creditors for capital goods 95.82 103.14
Total 530.58 171.55
20, Other current liabilities
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Advances from customers Le6 1.83
Statutory liabilities 10.58 9.30
Total 12.24 11.13
21. Provisions (current)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Leave encashment 412 6.83
Total 4.12 6.83
22, Current tax liabilities (Net)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024) March 31, 2023
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 88.97 719.44
Total 88,97 719.44
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23. Revenue from operations

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Sale of products

Particulars

March 31, 2024

Speciality chemicals 30,038.63 77.999.79
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 4.94 5.19
Sales tax incentive S 1,160.97 327.99
Export incentives 459.32 789.79
Total 31,663.86 79,122.76
24, Other income
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income on bank deposits and others at amortised cost 739.80 73.88
Liabilities no longer required written back - 43.13
Profit on redemption of Mutual funds designated at FVTPL 226 12.78
4 Fair value gain on investments designated at FVTPL (Net) - 20.86
Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.87 -
Foreign exchange gain (net) 139.56 599.59
Miscellaneous income 0.03 0.45
Total 882.52 750.69
25. Cost of materials consumed
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening stock 1,346.86 363.00
Add: Purchases 14,904.20 41,789.00
Sub-total 16,251.06 42,154.00
Less: Closing stock 175.36 1,346.86
Total 16,075.70 40,807.14
26. Changes in inventories of work-in-progress and finished goods
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023

— Opening inventories

Finished goods 1,544.85 707.32
Add: Adjustments on account of Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers - 227.63
Work-in-progress 231.57 31263
(A) 1,776.42 1,247.58
Closing inventories

Finished goods 1,556.39 1,544.85
Work-in-progress 231.30 231.57
(B) 1,787.69 1,776.42
Total (A-B) (11.27) (528.84)

27. Employee benefits expense
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 915.20 443.77
Contribution to provident and other funds 64.05 36.27
Statf welfare expenses 12.36 15.49
Total 991.61 495.53
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28. Finance costs

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest on borrowings 345.26 867.53
Interest on lease liabilities 1.04 1.83
Interest on shortfall in payment of advance tax 0.13 36.24
Other borrowing costs 80.94 113.52
Total 427.37 1,019.12
29. Depreciation and amortization expenses
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1,172.74 1,431.10
Amortisation of Right-of-use assets 6.77 5.75
Total 1,179.51 1,436.85
30. Other expenses
] Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Consumption of stores and spares 336.60 237.90
Consumption of packing material 323.71 634.64
Power and fuel 4.168.95 7,336.37
Freight charges 291.95 990.14
Effluent treatment expenses 69.22 44.80
Travelling and conveyance 18.63 5.05
Repairs and Maintenance 0.00 0.00
Buildings 139 8.09
Plant and Equipment 22219 341.07
Others 1.96 0.79
Printing and stationery 2.66 3.00
Communication expenses 273 2.85
Legal and professional charges 485.24 15.26
Insurance 134.62 140.59
Auditor's remuneration (Refer note 30 a} 30.90 14.68
Rates and taxes 26.05 25.26
Commission and discount 182.14 376.16
Sales promotion and other selling expenses 9.67 9.96
Miscellaneous expenses 50.48 11.36
- Donations 0.00 2.00
Bad debts written off 96.67 0.00
Corporate Environmental Responsibility (Refer Note 30 b) 140.57 0.00
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses (Refer Note 30 c) 290.53 99.99
Total 6,889.86 10,499.96
30(a) Payments to auditors
Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Statutory auditors
Statutory audit 8.50 8.50
Limited review 2.00 2.00
Tax audit fee 3.70 3.70
Certification Fees 15.02 =
Out of pocket expenses 1.68 0.48
Total 30.90 14.68

30(b) As per the Environmental clearance given by the Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change, the company is obliged to spend an
amount of Rs.240.00 Lakh towards Corporate Environment Responsibility. During the year, the company has spent an amount of Rs.140.57 Lakh.
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30(c) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Amount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 288.61 99.93
Amount of expenditure incurred 290.53 99.93
(a) Construction/acquisition of any asset 150.24 37.70
(b) On purposes other than (a) above 140.28 42.23
Shortfall /(Excess) , if any (1.92) -

Nature of CSR activities

Promoting education,

health care, rural sports

and setting up home
for orphans

Promoting education,
rural sports and setting
up home for orphans

Contribution to an enterprise where KMP has Significance Influence/ Control

39.00

30.50

31. Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Profit before income tax expense 6,993.60 26,143.69
Tax at the tax rate of 25.17% (P.Y. - 29.12%) 1,760.29 7,613.04
Effect of non-deductible expense 380.88 460.30
Effect of allowances for tax purpose (400.93) (380.37)
Total Tax 1,740.24 7,493.17
Effect of deferred tax (203.09) 741.27
Effect of earlier year's tax (643.45) 95.68
Income-tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss 893.70 8,330.12
32. Earnings per share (EPS)

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 6,099.90 17,813.57
Original number of equity shares 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS (Nos.) 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
Weighted average number of equity shares for dilutive EPS (Nos.) 20,00,00,000 20,00,00,000
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 3.05 8.91
Diluted earning per share (in Rs.) 3.05 8.91
Face value per equity Share (in Rs.) 2.00 2.00
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33. Employee benefits

(i) Leave obligations

The leave obligation covers the company's liability for earned leave which is unfunded.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

I'he company has defined contribution plans namely provident fund. Contributions are made to provident fund at the rate of 12% of basic salary plus DA as
per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the
amount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contributions
plan is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Company's contribution to provident fund 32.50 2234

(iii) Post- employment obligations

a) Gratuity

T'he company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the
employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The company
operates post retirement gratuity plan with LIC of India. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, which recognises each period of service giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to
build up the final obligation.

The following table sets out the amounts recognised in the financial statements in respect of gratuity plan
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023

Change in defined benefit obligations:

Obligation at the beginning of the year 30.67 13.40
Current service costs 18.84 941
Past service costs - -
Interest costs 2.30 0.95
Increase / (Decrease) due to effect of any business combination / divesture / transfer) 20.46 -
Remeasurement (gains)/ losses (5.47) 6.91
Benefits paid

Obligation at the end of the year 66.80 30.67

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 44.24 18.11
Interest income ’ 3.55 222
Increase / (Decrease) due to effect of any business combination / divesture / transfer) 20.46 -
Remeasurement (gains)/losses (0.83) (2.22)
Employer's contributions 6.13 26.13
Benefits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 73.55 44.24

Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss consists of:
Employee benefits expense:

Current service costs 18.84 9.41
Net interest expenses (1.25) (1.27)
Benefits paid
17.59 8.14

Other comprehensive income:
(Gain)/loss on plan assets (0.83) (2.22)
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions 16.70 1.95
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in experience adjustments (22.17) 4.96
(Gain)/loss on obligations (5.47) 6.91
Total OCI (4.64) 9.13
Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 12,95 17.27
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet consist of
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 73.55 44.24
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 66.80 30.67
Recognised as
Retirement benefit Lability - Non-current 63.53 29.09
Retirement benefit liability - Current 3.27) 1.58

Fair value of plan assets — 100% with LIC of India
Expected contribution to post-employment benefit plan of gratuity for the year ending March 31, 2025 is Rs. 26 lakhs.
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iv) Significant estimates and sensitivity analysis
I'he sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in key assumptions is:

Key assumptions Defined benefit obligation
Particulars Increase in assumption by Decrease in assumption by
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | Rate| March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Rate March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discount rate 7.22% 7.50% 1% (7.96) (3.33) 1% 9.64 4.01
Salary growth rate 7.00% 3.00% 1% 9.72 415 1% (8.17) (3.30)
Attrition rate 4.00% 4.00% % (0.18) 0.73 1% 015 (0.88)
Mortality Rate 100.00% 100.00% 10% - 0.02 10% (0.01) (0.02)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in each assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and
changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions,
the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

v) Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
Interest rate risk:

T'he defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to
increase.

Salary inflation risk:

Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk:

This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of
these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting
criteria. [t is important not to overstate withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per
year as compared to a long service employee.
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34. Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(A) The Company is primarily in the Business of manufacture and sale of Speciality Oleo Chemicals. All sales are made at a point in time
and revenue recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obligations which is typically upon dispatch or delivery. The Company has a
credit evaluation policy based on which the credit limits for the trade receivables are established, the Company does not give signiticant

credit period resulting in no significant financing component.

(B) Reconciliation of revenue recognised from Contract liability (Advance from Customers):

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Opening contract liability
Add: Addition to contract liability during the year
Less: Recognised as revenue during the year

Closing contract liability

1.83 0.03
533.87 1,990.28
(534.05) (1,988.48)
1.66 1.83

(C) Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in statement of profit an

d loss:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Revenue from contract with customer as per Contract price 30,107.37 78,017.73
Less: Discounts and incentives (66.48) (0.82)
Less:- Sales Returns /Credits / Reversals (2.26) (17.12)
Revenue from contracts with customers as per the Statement of profit and loss 30,038.63 77,999.79
Disaggregation of Revenue from contracts with customers

As at March 31, 2024| As at March 31, 2023
India 27,246.46 51,909.89
China 757.29 21,893.62
Malaysia - 1,625.99
Turkey 57.70 860.95
USA 1,080.91 678.06
Germany 51.44 481.52
Belgium - 92.67
United Kingdom 78.83 233.09
UAE 90.92 120.19
Spain 11212 66.11
Singapore 54548 37.70
Indonesia 17.48 -

30,038.63 77,999.79

35. Contingent liabilities
Particulars As at March 31, 2024| As at March 31, 2023
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts
Income tax 12047 56.44

Notes:

i). The above claims pertains to Income Tax - TDS on payments made to foreign companies / Non-residents in the FY 2017-18 & 2018 -
19. The Company has filed appeals with CIT(Appeals) of Income Tax and the same are pending for disposal. The Company has paid an

amount of Rs. 11,28,860 under protest.

ii). The company based on its legal assessment does not believe that any of the pending claims require a provision as at the balance sheet

date, as the likelihood of the probability of an outflow of resources at this point of time is low.

36. Commitments
Capital and other commitments

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for
(net of advances)

Other commitments

287.79

471.20

Total

287.79
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37. Related party transactions
a) Details of related parties
Name of the related parties
Balaji Amines Limited

Key Management Personnel
Ande Prathap Reddy

N Rajeshwar Reddy
D Ram Reddy

G Hemanth Reddy

Kashinath Revappa Dhole
Rajendrakumar Mohanprasad Tapadiya
Amarender Reddy Minupuri

Suhasini Shah

PardeepSingh RameshSingh Watwani
B. Srinivas

Lakhan Dargad

Balaji Foundation & Research Center
SVS Sourcings Private Limited

|l:|} Details of transactions during the year:

Description of relationship
Holding Company

Wholetime Director (from April 18, 2022)

Director (upto April 18, 2022)

Managing Director

Wholetime Director (from April 18, 2022 to May 15, 2023)
Director and Chief Financial Officer (upto April 18, 2022)
Wholetime Director

Independent Director (upto May 15, 2023)

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Chief Financial Officer (from April 18, 2022)

Company Secretary (from April 18, 2022 to December 30, 2023)
Company Secretary (from January, 29, 2024)

Enterprise where KMP has Significance Influence/ Control
Enterprise where KMI” has Significance Influence/ Control

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Holding company
Balaji Amines Limited
Purchase of goods & services 136.16 15,018.75
Sale of goods & services 1,160.84 1,192.76
Lease payments 7.80 710
Trademark & Franchises 0.50 -
Interest paid - 93.46
Loan repaid - &,600.00
Enterprise where KMP has Significance Influence/ Control
Balaji Foundation & Research Center
Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility 39.00 30.50
Key Management Personnel - -
Short-term employee benefits 449.82 69.34
Post employement benefits 1.92 -
c) Details of outstanding balances as at the year end where related party relationship existed:
Names of the related parties Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balaji Amines Limited
Unsecured, considered good
I'rade receivable* 102.39 7.95
* to be settled in cash on the same day with no credit period.
Key Management Personnel
Short-term employee benefits payable** 365,39 -
Post employement benefits** 192 -

** Short-term employee benefits to be settled in cash with no credit period. Post employement benefits to be setteled in cash at the time of retirenent.
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38. Financial instruments and risk management

Fair values

1. The carrying amounts of trade payables, other financial liabilities (current), borrowings (current),trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank
balances are considered to be the same as fair value due to their short term nature.

2. Borrowings (non-current) consists of loans from banks.

['he fair value of financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts
that are reasonable approximation of fair values:

(i) Categories of financial instruments

Particulars Level March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Carrying t Fair value* Carrying amount Fair value*
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost:
Non-current
Other financial assets 3 127.02 127.02 170.95 170.95
Current
Investments 1 - - 1.033.65 1,033.65
Trade receivables 3 5.818.52 5.818.52 11,739.43 11,759.43
Cash and cash equivalents 3 5,030.03 5.030.03 5,709.43 5,709.43
Other bank balances 3 8,376.73 8,376.73 1.811.70 1,811.70
Other financial assets 3 6.68 6.68 4.29 4.29
Total 19,358.98 19,358.98 20,489.45 20,489.45 2
Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Non-current
Borrowings 3 1,060.61 1,060.61 3,030.25 3,030.25
Lease liabilities 3 0.65 0.63 7.89 7.89
Current
Borrowings ] 609,09 909.09 2,727.18 2,727.18
Trade payables 3 581.12 581.12 2,629.71 2,629.71
Lease liabilities 3 7.24 7.24 6.76 6.76
Other financial liabilities 3 530.58 530.58 171.55 171.55
Total " 3,089.29 3,089.29 8,573.34 8,573.34

*Fair value of instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the following three levels:

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques, which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instruments are included in Level 3.

Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique.
Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company
could have realized or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, the fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be
different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

The Company is exposed to market risk (fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates, price and interest rate), liquidity risk and credit risk, which may
adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments, The Company assesses the unpredictability of the financial environment and seeks to mitigate
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

(A) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
of currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, trade receivables and trade
payables involving foreign currency exposure, The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of financial assets and liabilties .

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.
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(i) Foreign currency exchange rate risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the trade/ other payables, trade/other receivables and derivative
assets/ liabilities. The risks primarily relate to fluctuations in US Dollar and Euros against the functional currencies of the Company. The Company’s exposure to
foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material. The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its
exposure to exchange rate risks.

T'he following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in US dollors nad Euros exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.
The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

(ii) Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments and from foreign forward
exchange contracts:

Foreign currency exposure
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

EURO usD EURO UsD
EEFC account - - - 918.85
Trade receivables - 463.80 133.89 491.03
Trade pavables - % - 1,263.46
Net exposure to foreign currency risk - 463.80 133.89 146.42

Particulars Increasef(decrease) in Increase/(decrease) in other
profit before tax components of equity
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024) March 31, 2023

Change in EURO
1% increase - 1.4 - 0.95
1% decrease - (1.34) - (0.95)
Change in USD
1% increase 4.64 146 347 1.04
1% decrease (4.64) {1.46) (3.47) (1.04)

The movement in the pre-tax effect is a result of a change in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in US dollars and Euros, where the
functional currency of the entity is a currency other than US dollars and Euros.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates. As the
Company has certain debt obligations with floating interest rates, exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates are dependent of changes in market
interest rates. As the Company has no significant interést bearing assets, the income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other
variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Increase/f(decrease) in Increase/(decrease) in other
profit before tax components of equity
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Change in interest rate
increase by 100 basis points (38.87) (99.15) (29.09) (70.27)
decrease by 100 basis points 38.87 99.15 29.09 70.27

The assumed increase/ decrease in interest rate for sensitivity analvsis is based on the currently observable market environment.

(B) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk arising from credit exposure to customers, cash and cash equivalents held with banks and current and non-current held-to financial assets
of the Company include trade receivables, security deposits held with government authorities and bank deposits which represents Company's maximum
exposure to the credit risk.

With respect to credit exposure from customers, the Company has a procedure in place aiming to minimise collection losses. Credit Control team assesses the
credit quality of the customers, their financial position, past experience in payments and other relevant factors. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its
customer base, including default risk associate with the industry and country in which customers operate. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an
extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment, With respect to other financial assets viz., loans &
advances, deposits with government and banks, the credit risk is insignificant since the loans & advances are given to employees only and deposits are held with
government bodies and reputable banks. The credit quality of the financial assets is satisfactory, taking into account the allowance for credit losses.

Credit risk on trade receivables and other financial assets is evaluated as follows:
(i) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount 5,818.52 11,759.43
Expected credit loss - -

Carrying amount of trade receivables 5,818,52 11,759.43
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(ii) Expected credit loss for other financial assets under simplified approach:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gross carrying amount 6.67 4.29
Expected credit loss - -

Carrying amount of other financial assets 6.67 4.29

(iii) Significant estimates and judgements

Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The company uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the company's past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(C) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding to meet obligations when due and to close out market
positions. Company’s treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under deposits in banks.

Management menitors cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows.

(i) Financing arrangements:
T'he company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and 5,000.00 3,000.00
other facilities)
(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at :
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Less than 12 More than 12 Less than 12 More than 12

months months months months

Borrowings 909,09 1.060.61 2,727.18 3,030.25
Lease liabilities 7.24 0.65 6.76 7.89
['rade payables 581.12 - 2,62971 -
Other financial liabilities 530.58 - 171.55 -
Total 2,028.03 1,061.26 5,535.20 3,038.14

{iii) Management expects finance costs to be incurred far the vear ending March 31, 2025 is Rs. 383.04 Lakhs.

39. Capital management

A, Capital management and gearing ratio

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders. The primary objective of the company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants,
I'he company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is debt divided by total capital. The company includes within debt, interest bearing loans and
borrowings.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings

Current G09.09 2,727.18
MNon-current 1,060.61 3.030.25
Debt 1,969.70 5,757.43
Equity

Equity share capital 4,000.00 4,000.00
Other equity 38,656.89 32,555.01
Total capital 42,656.89 36,555.01
Gearing ratio in % (debl/ equity) 4.62% 15.75%

[n order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,
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40. Segment information:

a) Description of segments and principal activities

The Company’s primary segment is identified as business segment based on nature of products, risks, returns and the internal business ‘reporting ‘system. The
Company is principally engaged in a single business segment viz. ' Chemicals' only.

b) Information about geographical segments

For the purpose of geographical segments the revenue and assets are divided into two segments, i.e.. India and outside India.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Geographical area India Outside India Total India Outside India Total
Revenues 27,246.46 2,79217 30,038.63 51,909.89 26,089.90 77,999.79
Total non-current assets 23,783.12 700.53 2448365 21,925.64 132,48 22,038.12
Total current assets 22,952.05 463.80 23,415.85 25,468.20 571.65 26,039.85

¢) Information about products:
Revenue from external customers - Sale of chemicals : Rs. 30,043.38 lakh (P.Y. Rs.78,004.98 lakh).

d) Information about major customers
Sales to two of the customers of the company exceed 10% of the total revenue of company individually, the revenue from each of the customers is disclosed
below:

Customer 1 - Rs. 11013.75 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.21,021.23 lakh)

Customer 2 - Es. 5351.60 lakhs (P.Y. Rs.17,248.77 lakh)

41. Code on Social Security

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and
Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Secial Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited
suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry, The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject
rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to
determine the financial impact are published.
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